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AO 440 (Rev. 02/09) Summons in a Civil Action

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

for the

Eastern District of North Carolina

Securities and Exchange Commission

Plaintiff
v

. Civil Action No.
David L. Hersh

N W g

Defendant

SUMMONS IN A CIVIL ACTION

To: (Defendant’s name and address)

David L. Hersh
3704 Carriage Manor Court
Wendell, North Carolina 27591

A lawsuit has been filed against you.

Within 20 days after service of this summons on you (not counting the day you received it) — or 60 days if you
are the United States or a United States agency, or an officer or employee of the United States described in Fed. R. Civ.
P. 12 (a)(2) or (3) — you must serve on the plaintiff an answer to the attached complaint or 2 motion under Rule 12 of
the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure. The answer or motion must be served on the plaintiff or plaintiff’s attorney,
whose name and address are:

Robert K. Gordon

Senior Trial Counsel

Securities and Exchange Commission
3475 Lenox Road, N.E., Suite 500
Atlanta, Georgia 30326-1232

If you fail to respond, judgment by default will be entered against you for the relief demanded in the complaint.
You also must file your answer or motion with the court.

DENNIS P. IAVARONE, CLERK OF COURT

Date:

Signature of Clerk or Deputy Clerk
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AO 440 (Rev. 02/09) Summons in a Civil Action (Page 2)

Civil Action No.

PROOF OF SERVICE
(This section should not be filed with the court unless required by Fed. R. Civ. P. 4(1))

This summons for (rame of individual and title, if any)

was received by me on (date)

3 1 personally served the summons on the individual at (place)

on (date) ; or

(3 1 left the summons at the individual’s residence or usual place of abode with (name)

, a person of suitable age and discretion who resides there,

on (date) , and mailed a copy to the individual’s last known address; or

O 1served the summons on (rame of individual) , who is

designated by law to accept service of process on behalf of (name of organization)

on (date) ; Or
O Ireturned the summons unexecuted because _ ; or
O Other (specify):
My fees are $ for travel and $ for services, for a total of $ .00

I declare under penalty of perjury that this information is true.

Date:

Server’s signature

Printed name and title

Server’s address

Additional information regarding attempted service, etc:
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE EASTERN DISTRICT OF NORTH CAROLINA
WESTERN DIVISION

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE
COMMISSION,

Plaintiff, CIVIL ACTION NO.

V.

DAVID L. HERSH,
: Defendant.

COMPLAINT FOR INJUNCTIVE AND OTHER RELIEF

The Plaintiff, Securities and Exchange Commission (“Commission” or “Plaintiff”), files

this Complaint (“Complaint”) and alleges the following:
SUMMARY

1. This is a civil enforcement action by the Commission against David L. Hersh
(“Hersh”) of Wendell, North Carolina for fraud in connection with the offer and sale of
unregistered securities and misappropriation of client funds. From early 2007 through September
2008, Hersh obtained more than $2 million in funds from investors through the purported sale of
promissory notes. Although, nominally, the notes had fixed terms and interest rates, in fact,
Hersh told the investors that he would invest their funds in an options trading program. Hersh
falsely and misleadingly told the investors (1) they could expect a 40% annual rate of return, and
(2) the trading program involved minimal risk. Of the approximately $2 million in investor
funds that Hersh took in, he misappropriated approximately $575,000 for his personal use and

lost approximately $1,136,000 through risky options trading. By October 2008, the accounts in
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which Hersh traded the investors’ funds were virtually depleted and he ceased the options
trading. The Commission brings this action to enjoin Hersh’s violation of the federal securities
laws, to obtain disgorgement of his ill-gotten gains and prejudgment interest on that sum, and for

the imposition of civil penalties against Hersh.

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

2. The Commission brings this action pursuant to Sections 20(b), (c) and (d) of the
Securities Act of 1933 (“Securities Act”) [15 U.S.C. §§ 77t(b)-(d)], Sections 21(d) and 21(e) of
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (“Exchange Act”) [15 U.S.C. §§ 78u(d)-(e)], and Sections
209(d) and 209(e) of the Investment Advisers Act of 1940 (“Advisers Act”) [15 U.S.C. §§ 80b-
9(d)-(e)], to enjoin Hersh from engaging in the transactions, acts, practices and courses of business
alleged in this Complaint, and transactions, acts, préctices and courses of business of similar
purport and object, for disgorgement of illegally obtained funds and other equitable relief, and for
civil money penalties.

3. The Court has jurisdiction over this action pursuant to Sections 20(b), 20(d) and
22(a) of the Securities Act [15 U.S.C. §§77t(b), 77t(d) and 77v(a)], Sections 21(d), 21(e) and 27 of
the Exchange Act [15 U.S.C. §§78u(d), 78u(e) and 78aa], and Section 214 of the Advisers Act [15
U.S.C. §80b-14].

4. Hersh, directly and indirectly, made use of the mails, the means and
instrumentalities of transportation and communication in interstate commerce, and the means and
instrumentalities of interstate commerce, in connection with the transactions, acts, practices, and

courses of business alleged in this Complaint.
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5. Venue lies in this Court pursuant to Section 22(a) of the Securities Act [15 U.S.C.
§ 77v(a)], Section 27 of the Exchange Act [15 U.S.C. § 78aa], and Section 209 of the Advisers Act
[15U.S.C. § 80b-9], because certain of the transactions, acts, practices and courses of business
constituting violations of the Securities Act, Exchange Act, and Advisers Act occurred within the
Eastern District of North Carolina. Among other things, Hersh resides within the Eastern District
of North Carolina. Furthermore, investors in the Eastern District of North Carolina have been

solicited to purchase, and have purchased, investments by and through Hersh, as set forth herein.

FACTS
6. David L. Hersh, 40, has been a resident of Wendell, North Carolina since 2003.
Hersh has no securities industry eXperience.
7. From early 2007 through September 2008, Hersh offered and sold approximately

$2,054,500 in purported promissory notes to twelve investors for principal amounts ranging from
$35,000 to $930,000 per investor. Hersh recruited the investors who became victims of his
scheme through personal contacts.

8. Although the promissory notes typically had fixed terms and rates of interest,
Hersh told the investors that their funds would be invested in an options trading program.

9. Hersh pooled the investors’ funds in his and his wife’s respective Wachovia
Securities, LLC (“Wachovia Securities”) accounts, and pursued an options trading strategy that
involved selling put option contracts on equities and equity indexes, frequently without taking
positions to mitigate the risk of these transactions. Hersh never disclosed the true risks or results

of his options trading to actual or potential investors.
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10. Hersh falsely and misleadingly told existing and potential investors that his
options trading strategy involved minimal risk and that the expected annual returns were 40%. In
fact, Hersh knew that his options trading strategy was inherently risky, and Hersh did not expect
the investments to return 40% annually.

11. Hersh created and used false trading documents, including fake trade
confirmations, in order to lull existing investors and to obtain new ones. Hersh personally prepared
phony trade confirmations by electronically copying actual online trade confirmations and falsifying
them. The false trade confirmations reflected supposedly successful options trading that, in fact,
never occurred.

12. In September and October 2008, Hersh incurred trading losses of approximately
$1,136,000, virtually wiping out the options trading program account balances and causing him
to cease his options trading program. Hersh continued to make payments and false statements to
investors to lull them through approximately January 2009.

13. During the scheme, Hersh misappropriated approximately $575,000 of the
investors’ funds for his personal use.

COUNT I—FRAUD

Violations of Section 17(a)(1) of the Securities Act
[15 U.S.C. § 77q(a)(1)]

14. Paragraphs 1 through 13 are hereby realleged and are incorporated herein by
reference.
15. From approximately January 2007 through January 2009, Hersh, in the offer or

sale of securities, directly or indirectly, employed devices, schemes, or artifices to defraud

4
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purchasers of such securities, all as more particularly described herein.

16. Hersh knowingly, intentionally and/or recklessly engaged in the aforementioned
devices, schemes and artifices to defraud.

17. In engaging in such conduct, Hersh acted with scienter, that is, with an intent to
deceive, manipulate or defraud or with a severe reckless disregard for the truth.

18. While engaging in the courses of conduct described above, Hersh, directly or‘
iﬁdirectly, made use of the mails, or means or instruments of transportation or communication in
interstate commerce, or means or instrumentalities of interstate commerce.

19. By reason of the foregoing, Hersh violated, and, unless restrained and enjoined,
will continue to violate Section 17(a)(1) of the Secunties Act [15 U.S.C. § 77q(a)(1)].

COUNT 1II—FRAUD

Violations of Sections 17(a){(2) & 17(a)(3) of the Securities Act[15 U.S.C. §8 77q(a)(?) &
T7q(a)(3)]

20. Paragraphs 1 through 13 are hereby realleged and are inborporated herein by
reference.

21. From approximately January 2007 through January 2009, Hersh, m the offer or
sale of the securities described herein, by use of the means and instruments of transportation and
communication in interstate commerce and by use of the mails, directly and indirectly: (a) obtained
money or property by means of untrue statements of material facts and omissions of material
facts necessary in order to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which

they were made, not misleading; and (b) engaged in transactions, practices, or courses of business
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which would and did operate as a fraud or deceit upon the purchasers of securities, all as more
particularly described herein.

22. By reason of the foregoing, Hersh violated, and, unless restrained and enjoined,
will continue to violate Sections 17(a)(2) and 17(a)(3) of the Securities Act [15U.S.C. §
77q(2)(2) and (3)].

COUNT III—FRAUD

Violations of Section 10(b) of the Exchange Act [15 U.S.C. § 78i(b)]and Rule 10b-5
thereunder [17 C.F.R. § 240.10b-5]

23. Paragraphs 1 through 13 are hereby realleged and are incorporated herein by
reference.

24. From approximately January 2007 through January 2009, Hersh, in connection
with the pﬁrchase or sale of securities described herein, by use of the means and instrumentalities of
interstate commerce and by use of the mails, directly or indirectly: (a) employed devices, schemes,
or artifices to defraud; (b) made untrue statements of material facts and omitted to state material
facts necessary in order to make the statements made, in the light of the circumstances under
which they were made, not misleading; and (c) engaged in acts, practices, or courses of business
which would and did operate as a fraud and deceit upon the purchasers of such securities.

25. Hersh knowingly, intentionally and/or recklessly engaged in the aforementioned
devices, schemes and artifices to defraud, make untrue statements of material facts and omitted to
state material facts, and engaged in fraudulent acts, practices and courses of business. In engaging
in such conduct, Hersh acted with scienter, that is, with an intent to deceive, manipulate or defraud

or with a severe reckless disregard for the truth.
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26. By reason of the foregoing, Hersh violated, and, unless restrained and enjoined,
will continue to violate Section 10(b) of the Exchange Act [15 U.S.C. § 78j(a)(2)] and Rule 10b-
5 thereunder [17 C.F.R. § 240.10b-5].

COUNT IV—FRAUD

VYiolations of Section 206(1) of the Advisers Act
[15 U.S.C. § 80b-6(1)]

27. Paragraphs 1 through 13 are hereby realleged and are incorporated herein by
reference.

28. From approximately January 2007 through January 2009, Hersh, acting as an
mvestment adviser, by use of the mails and the means and instrumentalities of interstate
commerce, directly or indirectly, employed devices, schemes, and artifices to defraud one or
more advisory clients and/or prospective clients, all as more particularly described herein.

29. Hersh knowingly, intentionally, and/or recklessly engaged in the aforementioned
devices, schemes and artifices to defraud. In engaging in such conduct, Hersh acted with
scienter, that is, with an intent to deceive, manipulate or defraud or with a severe reckless
disregard for the truth.

30. By reason of the foregoing, Hersh violated, and, unless restrained and enjoined,

will continue to violate Section 206(1) of the Advisers Act [15 U.S.C. § 80b-6(1)].
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COUNT V--FRAUD

Violations of Section 206(2) of the Advisers Act
[15 U.S.C. § S0b-6(2)]

31. Paragraphs 1 through 13 are hereby reallegéd and are incorporated herein by
reference.

32. From approximately January 2007 through January 2009, Hersh, acting as an
investment adviser, by the use of the mails and the means and instrumentalities of interstate
commerce, directly and indirectly, engaged in transactions, practices and courses of business
which would and did operate as a fraud and deceit on one or more advisory clients and/or
prospective clients.

33. By reason of the foregoing, Hersh violated, and, unless restrained and enjoined,
will continue to violate Section 206(2) of the Advisers Act [15 U.S.C. § 80b-6(2)].

COUNT VI--FRAUD

Violations of Section 206(4) of the Advisers Act [15 U.S.C. § 80b-6(4)] and Rule 206(4)-8
thereunder [17 C.F.R. § 275.206(4)-8]

34. Paragraphs 1 through 13 are hereby realleged and are incorporated herein by
reference.

35. Hersh’s pool of investor funds constituted an investment company under Section
3(a) of the Investment Company Act of 1940 and a “pooled investment vehicle” under Rule
206(4)-8 thereunder.

36. From approximately January 2007 through January 2009, Hersh, acting as an

investment adviser, by the use of the mails and the means and instrumentalities of interstate
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commerce, directly and indirectly, engaged in acts, practices and courses of business which were
fraudulent, deceptive, and manipulative with respect to one or more investors and/or prospective
investors in Hersh’s pooled investment vehicle, including making untrue statements of matenal
fact or omitting to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in the light of the
circumstances under which they were made, not misleading, to one or more investors and/or
prospective investors in Hersh’s pooled investment vehicle.

37. By reason of the foregoing, Hersh violated, and, unless restrained and enjoined,
will continue to violate Section 206(4) of the Advisers Act [15 U.S.C. § 80b-6(4)] and Rule
206(4)-8 thereunder [17 C.F.R. § 275.206(4)-8].

COUNT VII--UNREGISTERED OFFERING OF SECURITIES

Violations of Sections 5(a) and 5(c¢) of the Securities Act
[15 U.S.C. §8§ 77¢(a) and 77¢(¢c)]

38. Paragraphs 1 through 13 are hereby realleged and are incorporated herein by
reference.

39. No registration statement has been filed or is in effect with the Commission
pursuant to the Securities Act and no exemption from registration exists with respect to the Hersh
scheme and transactions in such scheme described herein.

40. At various times from approximately January 2007 through January 2009,
Hersh, directly and indirectly: (a) made use of the means or instruments of transportation or
communication in interstate commerce or of the mails to sell the securities described herein,

through the use or medium of any prospectus or otherwise; (b) carried securities or caused such
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securities, as described herein, to be carried through the mails or in interstate commerce, by -
means or instruments of transportation, for the purpose of sale or for delivery after sale; and (c)
made use of the means or instruments of transportation or communication in interstate commerce
or of the mails to offer to sell or offer to buy, through the use or medium of any prospectus or
otherwise, the securities described herein; without a registration statement having been filed with
the Commission as to such securities.

41. By reason of the foregoing, Hersh, directly and indirectly, violated and, unless
enjoined, will continue to violate Sections 5(a) and 5(c) of the Securities Act [15 U.S.C. §§
77¢e(a) and 77¢(c)].

PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff respectfully prays for:
L

Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law pursuant to Rule 52 of the Federal Rules of

Civil Procedure, finding that Hersh committed the violations alleged herein.
1.

A permanent injunction enjoining Hersh, his officers, agents, servants, employees, and
attorneys from violating, directly or indirectly, Section 5(a), 5(c), and 17(a) of the Securities Act [15
U.S.C. §§ 77¢(a), 77¢(c), and 77q(a)], Section 10(b) [15 U.S.C. § 78j(b)] of the Exchange Act and
Rule 10b-5 [17 C.F.R. § 240.10b-5] thereunder, and Sections 206(1), 206(2), and 206(4) [15
U.S.C. §§ 80b-6(1), 80b-6(2), and 80b-6(4)] of the Advisers Act and Rule 206(4)-8 thereunder

[17 C.F.R. § 275.206(4)-8].

10
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118

An order requiring Hersh to disgorge all ill-gotten gains with prejudgment interest to

effect the remedial purposes of the federal securities laws.

Iv.

An order pursuant to Section 20(d) of the Securities Act, [15 U.S.C. § 77t(d)}, Section

21(d)(3) of the Exchange Act [15 U.S.C. § 78u(d)(3)] and Section 209(e) of the Advisers Act [15

U.S.C. § 80b-9(e)], imposing civil penalties against Hersh.

V.

Such other and further relief as this Court may deem just, equitable and appropriate 1n

connection with the enforcement of the federal securities laws and for the protection of investors.

Dated: September 21, 2009.

COUNSEL FOR PLAINTIFF

Respectfully submitted,

/s/William P. Hicks
William P. Hicks
Regional Trial Counsel
Georgia Bar No. 351649
hicksw(@sec.gov
(404)842-7675

/s/Robert K. Gordon
Robert K. Gordon
Senior Trial Counsel
Georgia Bar No. 302482
gordonr@sec.gov
(404)842-7652

Securities and Exchange Commission

3475 Lenox Road, N.E., Suite 500
Atlanta, Georgia 30326-1232
Facsimile: (404)842-7679
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